
TWAIN HARTE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Finance/Policy Committee Meeting 

 
 

Chair:  Gary Sipperley  
Co-Chair:   Kathryn deGroot 
 
 
   

VIDEO TELECONFERENCE 
May 5, 2021 1:30 p.m. 

 
IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
To help slow the spread of COVID-19, the District’s board room is closed to the public. 
Under the Governor’s Executive Order N-25-20, this meeting will be held remotely by 
teleconference using Zoom: 
 

• Videoconference Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88486987201  

• Meeting ID: 884 8698 7201 

• Telephone: (669) 900-6833 
 
ANYONE CAN PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING: see details at the end of this agenda. 

 

AGENDA 

1. Review/discuss draft Fiscal Year 2021-22 Administration Fund Budget and 
overall Budget. 

2. Review/discuss draft 5-year revenue and expense projections for all 
District Funds. 

3. Review Policy #3095 – District Facility Keys. 

4. Review/discuss revisions to Policy #3100 – Retention Policy.  

5. Adjourn. 
 
 

 
HOW TO OBSERVE THIS MEETING:  

The public can observe and participate in a meeting as follows: 

• Computer: Join the videoconference by clicking the videoconference link located at the 

top of this agenda or on our website. You may be prompted to enter your name and email. 

Your email will remain private and you may enter “anonymous” for your name. 

• Smart Phone/Tablet: Join the videoconference by clicking the videoconference link 

located at the top of this agenda OR log in through the Zoom mobile app and enter the 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88486987201


Meeting ID# and Password found at the top of this agenda. You may be prompted to enter 

your name and email. Your email will remain private and you may enter “anonymous” for 

your name. 

• Telephone:  Listen to the meeting by calling Zoom at (4669) 900-6833. Enter the Meeting 

ID# listed at the top of this agenda, followed by the pound (#) key.  

* NOTE: your personal video will be disabled and your microphone will be automatically muted. 

FOR MORE DETAILED INSTRUCTIONS, CLICK HERE  

 

HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

The public will have an opportunity to comment before and after the meeting as follows: 

• Before the Meeting: If you cannot attend the meeting, you may: 

o Email comments to ksilva@twainhartecsd.com, write “Public Comment” in the 

subject line. In the body of the email, include the agenda item number and title, as 

well as your comments.  

o Mail comments to THCSD Board Secretary: P.O. Box 649, Twain Harte, CA 95383 

 

• During the Meeting: The public will have opportunity to provide comment before and after 

the meeting as follows:  

o Computer/Tablet/Smartphone: Click the “Raise Hand” icon and the host will unmute 

your audio when it is time to receive public comment. If you would rather make a 

comment in writing, you may click on the “Q&A” icon and type your comment.  You 

may need to tap your screen or click on “View Participants” to make icons visible.  

Raise Hand Icon:       Q&A Icon:  

o Telephone: The host will provide a time during each public comment period where 
telephone participants will be unmuted and enabled to share comments. 

* NOTE: If you wish to speak on an item on the agenda, you are welcome to do so during 
consideration of the agenda item itself. If you wish to speak on a matter that does not appear on the 
agenda, you may do so during the Public Comment period.  Persons speaking during the Public 
Comment will be limited to five minutes or depending on the number of persons wishing to speak, it 
may be reduced to allow all members of the public the opportunity to address the Board.  Except as 
otherwise provided by law, no action or discussion shall be taken/conducted on any item not 
appearing on the agenda.  Public comments must be addressed to the board as a whole through the 
President. Comments to individuals or staff are not permitted. 
 

ACCESSIBILITY:  

Board meetings are accessible to people with disabilities. In compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodations for this meeting should notify the District office 48 
hours prior to the meeting at (209) 586-3172.   
 

WRITTEN MEETING MATERIALS:  

If written materials relating to items on this Agenda are distributed to Board members prior to the 
meeting, such materials will be made available for public inspection on the District’s website: 
www.twainhartecsd.com 

https://www.twainhartecsd.com/files/81b7e7864/How+To+Use+Zoom.pdf
mailto:ksilva@twainhartecsd.com
http://www.twainhartecsd.com/


 



TOTAL

Approved Requested % Diff Approved Requested % Diff Approved Requested % Diff Approved Requested % Diff Approved Requested % Diff PROJECTED

Revenue

Service Charges 1,470,488$  1,480,003$  1% 1,136,732$  1,138,433$  0% -$                   -$                   0% -$                   -$                   0% -$                   -$                   0% 2,618,436$         

Fees 14,530          18,520          27% 10,335          14,820          43% -                     -                     0% 11,180          3,500            -69% -                     -                     0% 36,840                 

Taxes & Assessments 107,825        113,046        5% -                     -                     0% 1,135,367    1,179,845    4% 134,556        139,091        3% -                     -                     0% 1,431,982           

Grants & Donations 6,821            -                     -100% 329,378        135,000        -59% 34,545          235,000        580% 104,390        384,000        268% -                     -                     0% 754,000              

Other  Revenue 13,775          8,000            -42% 8,725            7,500            -14% 104,374        37,600          -64% 2,250            1,600            -29% 1,000            1,000            0% 55,700                 
Total Program Revenue 1,613,438$  1,619,569$  0% 1,485,170$  1,295,753$  -13% 1,274,286$  1,452,445$  14% 252,376$     528,191$     109% 1,000$          1,000$          0% 4,896,959$         

Admin Revenue Allocation 470                470                0% 250                250                0% 180                180                0% 100                100                0% (1,000)           (1,000)           0% -                            
GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 1,613,908$  1,620,039$  0% 1,485,420$  1,296,003$  -13% 1,274,466$  1,452,625$  14% 252,476$     528,291$     109% -$                   -$                   0% 4,896,959$         

Operating Expenses

Salaries 314,797$      315,826$      0% 188,650$      182,393$      -3% 529,464$      480,223$      -9% 9,345$          6,291$          -33% 338,551$      362,571$      7% 1,347,304$         

Benefits 165,858        157,396        -5% 94,617          89,431          -5% 229,306        237,921        4% 5,425            3,009            -45% 155,760        169,595        9% 657,353              

Equip, Auto, Maint, & Repairs 110,400        140,000        27% 46,100          73,000          58% 108,550        103,900        -4% 47,850          43,450          -9% 19,700          18,600          -6% 378,950              

Materials & Supplies 41,750          46,000          10% 5,200            5,800            12% 12,100          12,350          2% 1,600            1,600            0% 5,250            4,750            -10% 70,500                 

Outside Services 91,900          28,800          -69% 347,628        153,200        -56% 27,400          25,300          -8% 4,250            4,400            4% 21,900          25,900          18% 237,600              

Other (Utilities, Prop/Liab Ins, TUD) 156,050        160,450        3% 508,652        516,700        2% 83,500          91,350          9% 23,500          23,900          2% 57,200          66,300          16% 858,700              

Debt Service 188,912        188,769        0% 17,011          16,994          0% 42,365          42,365          0% -                     -                     0% -                     -                     0% 248,128              

Total Program Expenses 1,069,667$  1,037,242$  -3% 1,207,858$  1,037,518$  -14% 1,032,685$  993,409$     -4% 91,970$        82,650$        -10% 598,361$     647,716$     8% 3,798,535$         

Administrative Cost Allocation 281,230        304,426        8% 149,590        161,929        8% 107,705        116,589        8% 59,836          64,772          8% (598,361)      (647,716)      8% -                            
GRAND TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,350,897$  1,341,668$  -1% 1,357,448$  1,199,447$  -12% 1,140,390$  1,109,998$  -3% 151,806$     147,422$     -3% -$                   -$                   0% 3,798,535$         

TOTAL OPERATING BALANCE 263,012$   278,372$   127,972$   96,556$      134,075$   342,627$   100,670$   380,869$   -$            -$            

Capital Expenses

Capital Outlay 381,220        808,850        112% 339,900        365,150        7% 219,230        492,500        125% 170,240        368,000        116% -                     0% 2,034,500           

Adminstrative Capital Allocation -                     0% -                     0% -                     0% -                     0% -                     0% -                            
Total Capital Expenses 381,220$     808,850$     112% 339,900$     365,150$     7% 219,230$     492,500$     125% 170,240$     368,000$     116% -$                   -$                   2,034,500$         

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 1,732,117$  2,150,518$  24% 1,697,348$  1,564,597$  -8% 1,359,620$  1,602,498$  18% 322,046$     515,422$     60% -$                   -$                   0% 5,833,035$         

Transfer To/(From) Reserve (118,208)$  (530,478)$  (211,928)$  (268,594)$  (85,155)$    (149,873)$  (69,570)$    12,869$      -$            -$            

Twain Harte Community Services District

2021/2022 ANNUAL BUDGET

PARK ADMINWATER SEWER FIRE



  BUDGET ITEM 20/21 Approved 21/22 Requested $ %   REASON FOR CHANGE

Other Revenue

Grant Revenue -$                 0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,000                     1,000                     -                        0%

Interest Revenue -                        0%

Lease Revenue -                        0%

Sale of Assets -                        0%

Other -                        0%

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 1,000$                1,000$                -$                     0%

GRAND TOTAL  REVENUE 1,000$              1,000$              -$             0%

Twain Harte Community Services District

2021-2022 ANNUAL BUDGET

ADMIN - REVENUE

BUDGET CHANGE



  BUDGET ITEM 20/21 Approved 21/22 Requested $ %   REASON FOR CHANGE

Salaries - 51XXX

Regular Time 323,051$               344,771$                21,720 7% Addition of Assistant GM duties

Sick Leave/Vacation Pay 8,000 8,800 800 10%

Director Stipends 7,500                     9,000                       1,500 20% LOOK AT LAW - FOR MAX REIMB

TOTAL SALARIES 338,551$              362,571$                24,020$          7%

Benefits - 52XXX

Health & Vision Insurance 47,818$                 50,750$                   2,931$             6%

HRA Reimbursement 18,625 18,988 363 2%

Retirement 58,951 67,501 8,550 15%

FICA 21,458 23,139 1,681 8%

Medicare 5,018 5,510 492 10%

Workers Comp 2,444 2,200 (244) -10%

Unemployment Ins/ETT 1,446                     1,508                       62 4%

TOTAL BENEFITS 155,760$              169,595$                13,835$          9%

Equipment, Automotive, Maintenance & Repairs

Equipment Maintenance & Repair 1,500$                   1,500$                     -$                 0%

Facilities Maintenance & Repair 8,000                     8,000                       0 0%

Vehicle Maintenance & Repair 1,000 0 (1,000) -100% GM Vehicle transferred to Water/Sewer

Janitorial/Cleaning Services 4,300 4,300 0 0%

Fuel 1,400 1,300 (100) -7%

Equipment Under $5,000 3,500 3,500 0 0%

TOTAL EQUIP, AUTO, MAINT & REPAIRS 19,700$                 18,600$                   (1,100)$           -6%

Materials & Supplies - 54XXX

Office Supplies 3,300$                   2,800$                     (500)$               -15% Large check order

Postage 1,700 1,700 0 0%

Janitorial Supplies 250                         250                          0 0%

TOTAL MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 5,250$                   4,750$                     (500)$              -10%

Twain Harte Community Services District

2021-2022 ANNUAL BUDGET

ADMIN - EXPENSES

BUDGET CHANGE



  BUDGET ITEM 20/21 Approved 21/22 Requested $ %   REASON FOR CHANGE

Twain Harte Community Services District

2021-2022 ANNUAL BUDGET

ADMIN - EXPENSES

BUDGET CHANGE

Outside Services - 55XXX

Auditing/Accounting Services 7,600$                   10,900$                   3,300$             43% Change of Auditors

Legal Fees 7,400 8,000 600 8%

IT Services 4,500 4,600 100 2%

Other Professional Services 2,400$                   2,400$                     0 0%

TOTAL OUTSIDE SERVICES 21,900$                 25,900$                   4,000$            18%

Other - 56XXX

Utilities 6,200$                   7,100$                     900$                15%

Phone/Communications 5,500 5,700 200 4%

Software Licenses & Maintenance 11,600 11,600 0 0%

Property/Liability Insurance 8,300 7,600 (700) -8% Transfer of vehicle to water/sewer

Dues & Memberships 6,000 5,100 (900) -15%

Licenses & Certifications 400 600 200 50%

Training, Conferences & Travel 11,200 21,500 10,300 92% New Board Member / GM Contract Travel

Advertising & Public Education 3,000 2,100 (900) -30% Cheaper to do bill inserts vs. newsletters

Bank/Investment Fees 5,000                     5,000                       -                     0%

TOTAL OTHER 57,200$                 66,300$                   9,100$            16%

Debt Service - 58XXX

Interest on Long Term Debt -$                       -$                         -$                 0%

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE -$                       -$                         -$                 0%

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 598,361$          647,716$           49,355$      8%

Admin Transfer Out (598,361)$         (647,716)$           49,355$       

GRAND TOTAL WITH TRANSFER -$                   -$                    



19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26

Actuals Budget Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

Current Revenue

Service Charges 1,446,545$            1,470,487$            1,480,003$            1,480,003$            1,480,003$            1,480,003$            1,480,003$            

Fees 11,263                   14,530                   18,520                   13,320                   13,320                   13,320                   13,320                   

Taxes & Assessments 115,411                 107,825                 113,046                 113,750                 36,605                   37,337                   38,083                   

Grants & Donations 68,884                   36,821                   -                              -                              -                              -                              -                              

Other Revenue 27,732                   13,775                   8,000                     8,000                     8,000                     8,000                     8,000                     
Total Program Revenue 1,669,835$           1,643,438$           1,619,569$           1,615,073$           1,537,928$           1,538,660$           1,539,407$           

Administrative Cost Allocation 383                         470                         470                         484                         499                         514                         529                         
GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 1,670,218$           1,643,908$           1,620,039$           1,615,557$           1,538,427$           1,539,174$           1,539,936$           

Expenses

Salaries 304,461$               314,798$               315,826$               332,134$               343,502$               352,100$               364,874$               

Benefits 154,978                 165,857                 157,396                 163,361                 168,101                 172,237                 176,739                 

Equip, Auto, Maint, & Repairs 82,614                   110,400                 140,000                 144,200                 148,526                 152,982                 157,571                 

Materials & Supplies 34,617                   41,750                   46,000                   47,380                   48,801                   50,265                   51,773                   

Outside Services 16,122                   91,900                   28,800                   29,664                   30,554                   31,471                   32,415                   

Other 135,164                 156,050                 160,450                 165,264                 170,221                 175,328                 180,588                 

Debt Service 186,169                 188,912                 188,769                 186,169                 114,297                 114,297                 114,297                 

Total Program Expenses 914,125$               1,069,667$           1,037,242$           1,068,172$           1,024,002$           1,048,679$           1,078,257$           

Administrative Cost Allocation 237,654                 281,230                 304,426                 315,150                 315,696                 326,952                 338,326                 
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,151,779$           1,350,897$           1,341,668$           1,383,322$           1,339,698$           1,375,631$           1,416,583$           

Total Operating Balance 518,439$            293,011$            278,372$            232,235$            198,729$            163,543$            123,352$            

Capital Expenses

Capital Outlay 600,244                 63,269                   808,850                 130,000                 127,700                 950,000                 530,000                 

Total Capital Expenses 600,244                 63,269                   808,850                 130,000                 127,700                 950,000                 530,000                 

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 1,752,023$           1,414,166$           2,150,518$           1,513,322$           1,467,398$           2,325,631$           1,946,583$           

3.30% 5.22% 3.30% 5.22% 3.30% 3.30% 3.30%

TRANSFER TO/(FROM) RESERVE (81,805)$               229,742$               (530,478)$             102,235$               71,029$                 (786,457)$             (406,648)$             

Capital Reserve Balance 926,156$         1,156,815$      615,923$         729,064$         800,093$         4,652$             (412,234)$        

Twain Harte Community Services District

WATER

5 Year Projections



19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26

Actuals Budget Projections Projections Projections Projections Projections

Revenue

Service Charges 1,132,278$              1,136,731$            1,138,433$            1,138,433$            1,138,433$            1,138,433$            1,138,433$                

Fees 9,563                        10,335                    14,820                    13,380                    13,380                    13,380                    13,380                        

Taxes & Assessments -                                 -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                                   

Grants & Donations 156,160                   329,378                  135,000                  -                               -                               -                               -                                   

Other Operating Revenue 21,151                     8,725                      7,500                      7,500                      7,500                      7,500                      7,500                          
Total Program Revenue 1,319,152$             1,485,169$            1,295,753$            1,159,313$            1,159,313$            1,159,313$            1,159,313$                

Administrative Cost Allocation 204                           250                         250                         258                         265                         273                         281                             
GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 1,319,356$             1,485,419$            1,296,003$            1,159,571$            1,159,578$            1,159,586$            1,159,594$                

Expenses

Salaries 164,504$                 188,650$               182,393$               191,412$               197,664$               201,705$               207,937$                   

Benefits 87,459                     94,616                    89,431                    92,735                    95,350                    97,527                    99,886                        

Equip, Auto, Maint, & Repairs 33,815                     46,100                    73,000                    59,740                    61,532                    63,378                    65,280                        

Materials & Supplies 4,575                        5,200                      5,800                      5,974                      6,153                      6,338                      6,528                          

Outside Services 175,224                   347,628                  153,200                  18,746                    19,308                    19,888                    20,484                        

Other 485,956                   508,652                  516,700                  532,201                  548,167                  564,612                  581,550                     

Debt Service 17,028                     17,011                    16,994                    17,478                    17,478                    17,478                    17,478                        

Total Program Expenses 968,561$                 1,207,857$            1,037,518$            918,286$               945,653$               970,926$               999,143$                   

Administrative Cost Allocation 126,412                   149,590                  161,929                  167,633                  167,923                  173,911                  179,961                     
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,094,973$             1,357,447$            1,199,447$            1,085,919$            1,113,576$            1,144,837$            1,179,104$                

Total Operating Balance 224,383$              127,972$            96,556$               73,652$               46,003$               14,750$               (19,510)$                 

Capital Expenses

Capital Outlay 69,211                     75,324                    365,150                  80,000                    245,300                  275,000                  2,775,000                  

Admin Capital Transfer

Total Capital Expenses 69,211                     75,324                    365,150                 80,000                    245,300                 275,000                 2,775,000                  

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 1,164,184$             1,432,771$            1,564,597$            1,165,919$            1,358,876$            1,419,837$            3,954,104$                

TRANSFER TO/(FROM) RESERVE 155,172$                 52,648$                 (268,594)$              (6,348)$                  (199,297)$              (260,250)$              (2,794,510)$              

Capital Reserve Balance 904,634$           914,738$         674,526$         661,265$         461,968$         193,902$         (2,609,175)$        

Twain Harte Community Services District

SEWER

5 Year Projections



19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26

Actuals Budget Projections Projections Projections Projections Projections

Revenue

Service Charges -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                         -$                              -$                              -$                             

Fees -                          -                          -                          -                            -                                 -                                 -                                

Taxes & Assessments 1,146,619        1,135,367        1,179,845        1,203,442          1,227,511                1,252,061                1,277,103               

Grants & Donations 47,127              34,545              235,000            -                            -                                 -                                 -                                

Other Operating Revenue 130,963            104,374            37,600              8,400                   8,400                        8,400                        8,400                       
Total Program Revenue 1,324,709$      1,274,286$      1,452,445$      1,211,842$        1,235,911$             1,260,461$             1,285,503$            

Administrative Cost Allocation 147                    180                    180                    185                      191                           197                           203                          
GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 1,324,856$      1,274,466$      1,452,625$      1,212,027$        1,236,102$             1,260,658$             1,285,706$            

Expenses

Salaries 531,787$          529,464$          480,223$          500,566$            519,432$                 527,274$                 530,685$                

Benefits 232,341            229,305            237,921            250,568              261,075                   268,609                   274,416                  

Equip, Auto, Maint, & Repairs 148,415            108,550            103,900            107,017              110,228                   113,534                   116,940                  

Materials & Supplies 10,171              12,100              12,350              12,721                13,103                     13,496                     13,901                    

Outside Services 13,798              27,400              25,300              26,059                26,841                     27,646                     28,475                    

Other 68,054              83,500              91,350              94,091                96,914                     99,821                     102,816                  

Debt Service 42,365              42,365              42,365              42,365                -                                 -                                 -                                

Total Program Expenses 1,046,931$      1,032,684$      993,409$         1,033,387$        1,027,592$             1,050,381$             1,067,234$            

Administrative Cost Allocation 91,016              107,705            116,589            120,696              120,905                   125,216                   129,572                  
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,137,948$      1,140,389$      1,109,998$      1,154,083$        1,148,497$             1,175,597$             1,196,806$            

Total Operating Balance 186,908$       134,077$       342,627$       57,944$           87,605$                85,062$                88,900$               

Capital Expenses

Capital Outlay 129,832            116,504            492,500            80,000                100,000                   -                                 -                                

Admin Capital Transfer -                          -                          -                                 -                                 -                                

Total Capital Expenses 129,832            116,504            492,500            80,000                100,000                   -                            -                           

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 1,267,780$      1,256,893$      1,602,498$      1,234,083$        1,248,497$             1,175,597$             1,196,806$            

TRANSFER TO/(FROM) RESERVE 57,076$            17,573$            (149,873)$        (22,056)$            (12,395)$                  85,062$                   88,900$                  

Capital Reserve Balance 577,689$    595,262$    445,390$    423,334$     410,939$          496,001$          584,901$         

Twain Harte Community Services District

FIRE PROJECTIONS

SUMMARY



19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26

Actuals Budget Projections Projections Projections Projections Projections

Revenue

Service Charges -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Fees 5,180                11,180              3,500                2,800                2,800                2,800                2,800                

Taxes & Assessments 132,564           134,556           139,091           141,872           144,710           147,604           150,556           

Grants & Donations 19,945              104,390           384,000           1,085,000        15,000              15,000              15,000              

Other Operating Revenue 5,660                2,250                1,600                1,600                1,600                1,600                1,600                
Total Program Revenue 163,349$         252,376$         528,191$         1,231,272$      164,110$         167,004$         169,956$         

Administrative Cost Allocation 81                     100                   100                   103                   106                   109                   113                   
GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 163,430$         252,476$         528,291$         1,231,375$      164,216$         167,113$         170,069$         

Expenses

Salaries 8,491$              9,345$              6,291$              6,552$              6,731$              6,847$              7,027$              

Benefits 3,712                5,426                3,009                3,109                3,190                3,258                3,331                

Equip, Auto, Maint, & Repairs 29,859              47,850              43,450              44,754              46,097              47,480              48,904              

Materials & Supplies 1,209                1,600                1,600                1,648                1,697                1,748                1,800                

Outside Services 3,892                4,250                4,400                4,532                4,668                4,808                4,952                

Other 16,615              23,500              23,900              24,617              25,356              26,117              26,901              

Debt Service -                         -                         

Total Program Expenses 63,778$           91,971$           82,650$           85,212$           87,739$           90,258$           92,915$           

Administrative Cost Allocation 50,565              59,836              64,772              67,053              67,169              69,564              71,984              
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 114,343$         151,807$         147,422$         152,265$         154,908$         159,822$         164,899$         

Total Operating Balance 49,087$         100,669$       380,869$       1,079,111$   9,308$           7,291$           5,170$           

Capital Expenses

Capital Outlay 4,265                135,438           368,000           1,095,000        30,000              12,000              30,000              

Admin Capital Transfer -                         -                         

Total Capital Expenses 4,265                135,438           368,000           1,095,000        30,000             12,000             30,000             

GRAND TOTAL EXPENSES 118,608$         287,245$         515,422$         1,247,265$      184,908$         171,822$         194,899$         

TRANSFER TO/(FROM) RESERVE 44,822$           (34,769)$          12,869$           (15,889)$          (20,692)$          (4,709)$            (24,830)$          

Capital Reserve Balance 241,017$    206,248$    219,117$    203,227$    182,536$    177,826$    152,996$    

Twain Harte Community Services District

PARK PROJECTIONS

SUMMARY



19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23 23/24 24/25 25/26

Actuals Budget Projections Projections Projections Projections Projections

Revenue

Service Charges -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Fees -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Taxes & Assessments -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Grants & Donations -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Other Operating Revenue 1,000             1,000             1,000             1,030             1,061             1,093             1,126             
Total Program Revenue 1,000$           1,000$           1,000$           1,030$           1,061$           1,093$           1,126$           

Administrative Cost Allocation (1,000)            (1,000)            (1,000)            (1,030)            (1,061)            (1,093)            (1,126)            
GRAND TOTAL REVENUE -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Expenses

Salaries 297,098$      338,551$      362,571$      376,029$      372,040$      386,495$      401,987$      

Benefits 123,071        155,759        169,595        175,486        177,066        182,883        187,803        

Equip, Auto, Maint, & Repairs 22,350           19,700           18,600           19,158           19,733           20,325           20,934           

Materials & Supplies 3,185             5,250             4,750             4,893             5,039             5,190             5,346             

Outside Services 20,887           21,900           25,900           26,677           27,477           28,302           29,151           

Other 39,058           57,200           66,300           68,289           70,338           72,448           74,621           

Debt Service

Total Program Expenses 505,649$      598,360$      647,716$      670,531$      671,694$      695,643$      719,843$      

Administrative Cost Allocation (505,649)       (598,360)       (647,716)       (670,531)       (671,694)       (695,643)       (719,843)       
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

Total Operating Balance -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            -$            

Twain Harte Community Services District

ADMIN PROJECTIONS

SUMMARY



 
  

 THCSD 3095 District Facility Keys 

Page 1 of 1 

 

POLICY TITLE:        District Facility Keys 

POLICY NUMBER:   3095 

ADOPTED:                  August 16, 2005 

AMENDED:                  

 

3095.10  All District owned facilities will be protected by District-issued security devices only. 

 

3095.20  Keys will be issued by the District for approved activities only and for specified time 

periods dependent upon the proposed use of the facilities.  The party requesting the keys shall be 

required to sign an agreement of responsibility for damage to the facilities during use and timely 

return of facility keys. Any key issued by the District which is unreturned within the specified 

time period will be considered to be lost.  

 

3095.30  Upon discovery that a District facility key has been lost, District staff will replace the 

affected security device and a lost key fee that includes the cost of the security device(s), 

installation and administrative labor will be charged to the party to whom the key was issued.  

 

 3095.31 Lost key fees and charges are detailed in Policy 1060, Miscellaneous Fee   

 Schedule. 

 

 3095.32  Lost key fees and charges will be billed directly to the party to whom the key   

 was issued.  If such party is a customer of the District, the lost key fees and charges will 

 be added to the primary account of the party and become due and payable in 

accordance with District policy.   

 TWAIN HARTE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 Policy and Procedure Manual  



  

THCSD Policy #3100, Records Retention & Destruction 

Page 1 of 6 

 
POLICY TITLE: Records Retention & Destruction 

POLICY NUMBER: 3100 

ADOPTED:  November 10, 2011   

   

 

3100.10 The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines regarding the retention or 

destruction of Twain Harte Community Services records; provide for the identification, 

maintenance, safeguarding and disposal of records in the normal course of business; ensure 

prompt and accurate retrieval of records and ensure compliance with legal and regulatory 

requirements. 
 

3100.20 Vital and important records, regardless of recording media, are those having legal, 

financial, operational or historical value to the District. 

 

3100.30 The General Manager is authorized by the Board of Directors to interpret this policy 

and to cause to be destroyed any or all such records, papers and documents that meet the 

qualifications governing the retention and disposal of records, specified below and according to 

the approved Records Retention Schedule (Appendix B). 

 

3100.40 Pursuant to the provisions of California Government Code §§60200 through 60203, 

California Water Code §21403 and the guidelines prepared by the State Controller’s office and 

the Controller’s Advisory Committee for Special Districts, the following qualifications will 

govern the retention and disposal of records of Twain Harte Community Services District. 
 

 3100.41 Duplicate records, papers and documents may be destroyed at any time 

 without the necessity of Board authorization or copying to photographic or electronic 

 media. 

 3100.42 Originals of records, papers and documents more than two years old that 

 were prepared or received in any manner other than pursuant to State or Federal 

 statute may be destroyed without the necessity of copying to photographic or 

electronic  media. 

 3100.43 In no instances are records, papers or documents to be destroyed where there 

 is a continuing need for such records for such matters as pending litigation, special 

 projects, etc. 

 3100.44 Records, papers or documents which are not expressly required by law to be 

 filed and preserved may be destroyed if all of the following conditions are met: 

A) The record, paper or document is photographed, micro photographed,  

reproduced on film of a type approved for permanent photographic 

records by the National Bureau of Standard, or copied to an approved 

electronic media; 

 TWAIN HARTE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 Policy and Procedure Manual  

kim
Typewritten text
EXISTING VERSION



  

THCSD Policy #3100, Records Retention & Destruction 

Page 2 of 6 

B) The device used to reproduce such records, papers or documents on 

film or to retrieve and print the document from the electronic media is 

one which accurately reproduces the original thereof in all details; and, 

C) The photographs, micro photographs or other reproductions on film 

are placed in conveniently accessible files and provision are made for 

preserving, examining and using the same, together with documents 

stored via electronic media. 

 

3100.45 Any accounting records which were prepared or received in any manner 

other than pursuant to State statute may be authorized for destruction per the Records 

Retention Schedule (Appendix B) provided that: 

 A) There is not continuing need for said record, i.e. long-term   

  transactions, special projects, pending litigations, etc., and; 

 B) There exists in a permanent file, an audit report or reports covering  

  the inclusive period of said record, and that; 

 C) Said audit report or reports were prepared pursuant to procedures  

  outlined in Government Code Section 26909 and other State or   

  Federal audit requirements, and that; 

 D) Said audit or audits contain the expression of an unqualified   

  opinion. 

 3100.46     Any accounting record created for a specific event or action may be 

 destroyed per the Records Retention Schedule (Appendix B), if said event has in all 

 respects terminated. Any source document detailed in a register, journal, ledger or 

 statement may be authorized for destruction per the Records Retention Schedule at 

 the end of the fiscal period to which it applies.  The following may be destroyed at 

any  time: 

  A) Duplicated (original-subject to aforementioned requirements). 

  B) Rough drafts, notes or working papers (except audit). 

  C) Cards, listing, non-permanent indices, other papers used for   

   controlling work or transitory files. 

 

 3100.47 All payroll and personnel records shall be retained indefinitely.  Originals  

 may upon authorization be destroyed per the Records Retention Schedule (Appendix 

 B), provided said records have been microfilmed and qualify for destruction in 

 3100.40 above. Payroll and personnel records include the following: 

 A) Accident reports, injury claims and settlements 

 B) Medical histories 

 C) Injury frequency charts 

 D) Applications, changes and terminations of employees 

 E) Insurance record of employees 

 F) Time cards 

 G) Classification specifications (job descriptions) 

 H) Performance evaluation forms 

 I) Earning records and summaries 

 J) Retirements 

 



  

THCSD Policy #3100, Records Retention & Destruction 

Page 3 of 6 

 3100.48 All assessing records may upon authorization be destroyed per the Records 

 Retention Schedule (Appendix B).  

 

 3100.49 Records of proceedings for the authorization of long-term debt, bonds, 

 warrants, loans, etc., after issuance or execution may be destroyed if microfilmed as 

 provided for in 3100.40 above. Terms and conditions of bonds warrants and other 

 long-term agreements should be retained until final payment and thereafter, may be 

 destroyed per the Records Retention Schedule (Appendix B). 

 

 3100.50 Minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors are usually retained 

 indefinitely in their original form.  However, they may upon authorization be 

destroyed  if said minutes are microfilmed as provided for in 3100.40 above. Recording 

tapes (or  other media) of Board meetings will be kept for a period of 60 days from the date of 

 the recorded meeting, after which they will be destroyed. 

 

 3100.60 Construction records, such as bids, correspondence, change orders, etc. per 

 the Records Retention Schedule (Appendix B) shall be kept unless they pertain to a 

 project which includes a guarantee or grant and, in that event, they shall be kept for the 

 life of the guarantee or grant plus seven years. As-built plans for any public facility or 

 works shall be retained as long as said facility is in existence. 

 

 3100.70 Contracts should be retained per the Records Retention Schedule 

 (Appendix B).  Any unaccepted bid or proposal for the construction or installation of 

 any building, structure or other public work which is more than two years old may be 

 destroyed. 

 

 3100.80 Property records, such as documents of title, shall be kept until the property 

 is transferred or otherwise no longer owned by the District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



  

THCSD Policy #3100, Records Retention & Destruction 

Page 4 of 6 

APPENDIX A 

 

Definitions for Records Retention and Destruction Policy 

 

 

1.  AUTHORIZATION – Approval from the General Manager, as authorized by the District’s 

 Board of Directors. 

 

2. ACCOUNTING RECORDS – Includes but not limited to the following: 

 A). Source Documents 

   1. Invoices 

   2. Warrants 

   3. Requisitions/Purchase Orders (attached to invoices) 

   4. Cash Receipts 

   5. Claims (attached to warrants in place of invoices) 

   6. Bank Statements 

   7. Bank Deposits 

   8. Checks 

   9. Bills 

      10. Various accounting authorizations taken from Board minutes, Resolutions or  

       contracts. 

 

 B).  Journals 

   1. Cash Receipts 

   2. Accounts Receivable or Payable Registers 

   3. Check or Warrant (payables) 

   4. General Journal 

   5. Payroll Journal 

 

 C). Ledgers 

   1. Expenditure 

   2. Revenue 

   3. Accounts Payable or Receivable Ledger 

   4. Construction 

   5. General Leger 

   6. Assets/Depreciation 

 

 D). Trial Balance 

 

 E). Statements (Interim or Certified-Individual or All Fund) 

   1. Balance Sheet 

   2. Analysis of Changes in Available Fund Balance 

   3. Cash Receipts and Disbursements 

   4. Inventory of Fixed Assets (Purchasing) 

 

  

 F). Journal Entries 

 



  

THCSD Policy #3100, Records Retention & Destruction 

Page 5 of 6 

 G).  Payroll and Personnel Records – Includes but not limited to the following: 

   1. Accident reports, injury claims and settlements 

   2. Applications, changes or terminations of employees 

   3. Earnings records and summaries 

   4. Fidelity Bonds 

   5. Garnishments 

   6. Insurance records of employees 

   7. Job Descriptions 

   8. Medical Histories 

   9. Retirements 

      10. Time Cards 

 

 H). Other 

   1. Inventory Records (Purchasing) 

   2. Capital Asset Records (Purchasing) 

   3. Depreciation Schedule 

   4. cost Accounting Records 

 

3. LIFE – The inclusive or operational or valid dates of a document. 

 

4. RECORD – Any paper, bound book or booklet, card, photograph, drawing, chart, blueprint, 

 map, tape, microfilm or other document, issued by or received in a department and maintained 

 and used as information in the conduct of its operation. 

 

5.  RECORD COPY- The official district copy of a document or file. 

 

6. RECORD SERIES – A group of records, generally filed together and having the same 

 reference and retention value. 

 

7. RECORDS CENTER – The site selected for storage of inactive records. 

 

8. RECORDS DISPOSAL – The planning for and/or the physical operation involved in the 

 transfer of records to the Records Center or the authorized destruction of records pursuant to 

 the approved Records Retention Schedule. 

 

9. RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE – The consolidated, approved schedule of all District 

 records which timetables the life and disposal of all records. 

 

10. RETENTION CODE – Abbreviation of retention action which appears on the Retention 

 Schedule. 

 

11. VITAL RECORDS -  Records which, because of the information they contain, are essential 

to  one or all of the following: 

 

 A).  the resumption  and/or continuation of operations; 

 B).  the recreation of legal and financial status of the District, in case of a disaster; 

 C).  the fulfillment of obligations to bondholders, customers, and employees. 

 D).  Vital Records include but are not limited to the following: 



  

THCSD Policy #3100, Records Retention & Destruction 

Page 6 of 6 

 

    1. Agreements 

    2. Annexations and detachments 

    3. As-built drawings 

    4. Audits 

    5. Contract drawings 

    6. Customer statements 

    7. Deeds 

    8. Depreciation schedules 

    9. Disposal of surplus & excess property 

       10. Disposal of scrap materials 

       11. District insurance records 

           12. District water rights 

       13. Employee accident reports, injury claims & settlements 

       14. Employee earning records 

       15. Employee fidelity bonds 

       16. Employee insurance records 

       17. Encroachment permits (by others) 

       18. Encroachment permits (by THCSD) 

       19. Facility improvement plans 

     20. Improvement districts 

      21. Individual water rights 

      22. Individual claims/settlements 

      23. Inventory 

      24. Journal vouchers 

      25. Ledgers 

      26. Licenses & permits (to operate) 

      27. Loans & grants 

      28. Maps 

      29. Minutes of Board meetings 

      30. Payroll registers 

      31. Policies, Rules & Regulations 

      32. Purchase orders & requisitions 

      33. Restricted materials permits 

      34. Rights of ways & easements 

      35. Spray permits 

        36. Statements of Economic Interest 

      37. State surplus acquisitions 

      38. Warehouse requisitions 

      39. Warrant/Voucher register 

      40. Warrants (with backup) 

      41. Water rights history 

   







































































THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 1 of 12 

 

 

POLICY TITLE:   Records Retention & Destruction  

POLICY NUMBER:  3100 

ADOPTED:    November 10, 2011 

REVISED: 

 

3100.10  PURPOSE  

The purpose of this policy is to provide staff guidance regarding the retention or 
disposal of Twain Harte Community Services District (District) records; provide for the 
identification, maintenance, safeguarding and disposal of records in the normal course 
of business; ensure prompt and accurate retrieval of records; and ensure compliance 
with legal and regulatory requirements.  
 
3100.20  AUTHORITY 

This policy and schedule govern the retention and disposal of District records pursuant 
to the provisions of California Government Code §61061(c) and §60200 – §60203. 
 
The General Manager is authorized by the District Board of Directors to interpret and 
implement this policy, and to cause to be destroyed any or all such records, papers and 
documents that meet the qualifications governing the retention and disposal of records, 
specified herein. 
 

3100.30  DEFINITIONS 

1. LIFE: The inclusive or operational or valid dates of a document.  Signified by an 

“L” in the Records Retention Schedule (Appendix A). 

2. PERMANENT: The requirement to keep a record indefinitely without destroying 

it. Signified by a “P” in the Records Retention Schedule (Appendix A). 

3. RECORD: Any paper, bound book or booklet, card, photograph, drawing, chart, 

blueprint, map, tape, microfilm, or other document (regardless of physical form or 

characteristics) produced, received, owned or used by the District in the conduct of its 

operations. See California Government Code §6252(g) for more information. 

4. RECORDS RETENTION SCHEDULE: The consolidated, approved schedule and/or 

list of all District records which timetables the life and disposal of all records. Included in 

this policy as Appendix A.  

 TWAIN HARTE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 Policy and Procedure Manual 
 

kim
Typewritten text
PROPOSED VERSIONTO REPLACE CURRENT VERSION IN ITS ENTIRETY



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 2 of 12 

 

5. RETENTION PERIOD: The length of time a record is required to be kept by the 

District without being destroyed, expressed in years. Unless specified otherwise, 

the retention period begins when a document is approved, complete or received 

in its final form. Finance record retention periods begin at the end of the fiscal 

year in which records were created. 

 
3100.40    NON-RECORDS  

The following are not considered records and may be destroyed at any time without 
authorization of the Board or General Manager and without copying to photographic of 
electronic media:  

1. Duplicates. 

2. Preliminary drafts, worksheets, internal notes not necessary as verification on 

the completed draft.  

3. Intra-agency memoranda which are not retained by the District in the ordinary 

course of business. 

4. Telephone messages, shorthand notes, steno tapes, other temporary 

mechanical recordings.  

5. Letters of transmittal or form letters which require no follow-up action.  

6. Routine acknowledgements, answers to inquiries.  

7. Advertising Literature, circulars, 3rd class mail. 

8. Superseded or outdated publications, forms, directories, etc.  

9. Notes of appreciation, congratulations, etc. 

10. Announcements, bulletin board notices.  

 
3100.50  RECORDS RETENTION REQUIREMENTS  

3100.51  Records Retention Schedule: Appendix A contains the District’s Records 
Retention Schedule, which provides minimum time periods for retaining categories 
of District records. Indefinite retention periods (periods not labeled “Permanent”) are 
based on any minimum retention requirements established by law and the maximum 
period of time the District deems each type of record could reasonably affect any 
interest of the District or public.  

  
3100.52  Records not Listed: Originals of records, papers and documents that do 
not fall under one of the records categories in the Records Retention Schedule and 
were prepared or received in any manner other than pursuant to State or Federal 
statute shall be retained for a minimum of two (2) years prior to destruction. 
  
3100.53  E-mail Retention: The District’s electronic mail (“e-mail) system is 

intended as a medium of temporary communication only and should not be used to 

store or maintain correspondence and other documentation considered to be public 

records per the California Public Records Act (Gov. Code § 6250-6276.48). 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 3 of 12 

 

However, some e-mails and/or their attachments may be considered public records. 

The following retention requirements apply to District e-mails: 

 

1. E-mails as Public Records: “Public records” include any writing containing 

information relating to the conduct of District business prepared, owned, used 

or retained by the District regardless of physical form or characteristics. If an 

e-mail (including attachments) meets the definition of a public record, it must 

be retained in accordance with the retention periods specified in this policy 

and the Records Retention Schedule (Appendix A), based on type of record.  

  

2. E-mails as Non-Records:  E-mails that can be considered non-records (see 

Section 3100.40) are not required to be retained.  Employees are encouraged 

to delete documents which are not otherwise required to be kept by law or 

whose preservation is not necessary or convenient to the discharge of duties 

or the conduct of the District’s business.  Examples of e-mail messages that 

are generally not considered public records may include: 

• Personal messages not related to official District business.  

• Messages with attached copies or extracts of documents distributed for 

convenience or reference (with the original documents being preserved 

according to the District’s Records Retention Policy). 

• Messages that are essentially cover notes or distribution slips. 

 

3. Responsibility for E-Mail Retention: Generally, the District employee who 

sends or receives an e-mail that qualifies as a public record should be the 

person responsible for preserving that e-mail. Employees responsible for a 

particular program or project file shall also be responsible for preserving all e-

mail they send or receive related to that program or project.  District 

employees may print and file hard copies of e-mail messages that must be 

retained.  Employees may also save e-mail messages electronically, in 

electronic folders separate from their regular e-mail inboxes. All e-mail 

messages retained electronically must be easy to retrieve, view and print out. 

 

4. Determination of Public Record: The General Manager or their designee will 

assist employees in determining whether an e-mail message is required to be 

retained and/or is necessary or convenient to the discharge of duties or the 

conduct of the District’s business. 

 

5. Claims/Lawsuits: Any e-mail messages that relate to a claim or a potential 

claim against the District must be preserved.  Likewise, any e-mail messages 

that may relate to a lawsuit filed against the District, even if a subpoena or 

court order for such e-mail messages has not yet been issued, must be 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 4 of 12 

 

preserved.  The District has a duty to preserve any relevant data when there 

is even a hint of possible litigation.   

 

6. Requests for E-mail Records: In the event a records request or subpoena is 

made for e-mail, the employees having control over such e-mail, once they 

become aware of the request or demand, shall use their best efforts, by any 

reasonable means available, to temporarily preserve any e-mail which is in 

existence until it is determined if such e-mail is subject to preservation, public 

inspection or disclosure.   

 

7. Other Electronic Communication:  For the purposes of this section, e-mail 

also includes messages sent through a wireless phone or other electronic 

device that ends up as e-mail or text message to or from any District 

employee as long as such message pertains to the District’s business. 

 
3100.60  RECORDS DESTRUCTION 

3100.61  No Destruction of Records in Use: In no instances are records, papers, 
or documents to be destroyed where there is a continuing need for such records for 
such matters as pending litigation, special projects, etc. 
 

3100.62  E-mail Destruction: The District’s e-mail system will automatically delete 
all e-mail messages in employee’s inboxes that are greater than (2) years old. E-
mail messages saved in electronic folders as public records will not be deleted.  
 

3100.63  Destruction of Records: Keeping numerous records after a certain period 
of time is not necessary for the effective and efficient operation of the District and 
does not provide any benefit to the interests of the District or public. Therefore, 
records, papers or documents which are not expressly required by law to be filed 
and preserved may be destroyed if all the following conditions are met: 

1. The record’s retention period has been met, pursuant to this policy and the 

Records Retention Schedule (Appendix A). 

2. The District finds the category of records listed in the policy may be destroyed 

after specified retention periods because the record’s destruction is not found 

to have an adverse effect on any interest of the District or of the public. 

3. Records must be approved for destruction by the General Manager on a form 

authorizing said destruction. The form shall include a general inventory of the 

documents to be destroyed by category that reasonably identifies the 

information in the records destroyed. 

3100.64  Destruction Timing: Approval and destruction of records is to occur on an 

annual basis or as necessary.  Destruction of records shall be in a manner that does 

not compromise privacy or other confidential information. 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 5 of 12 

 

Appendix A  
Records Retention Schedule   

  

FILING SYSTEM COLOR CODE KEY  

COLOR CODE  RETENTION PERIOD   

GREEN  3  

YELLOW  5  

ORANGE  7  

RED  10  

PURPLE  P (Permanent)  

PINK  L (Life)  

  
 
 

Record  
ADMINISTRATION  

Retention 
Period  

Description/Examples  

Agreements  
Agreements  P Not Capital Improvement1  

MOU’s  
Contracts   

Board of Directors  
Board Meeting Materials  3  Agendas, Board Packets2 

Board Legal Documents  7 Election Materials/Results3 
Ethics Training/Certificate4 
Form 7005 
Oaths of Office6  

Minutes  P 7 

Resolutions and 
Ordinances*   

P *If the policy has been repealed, it may be 
destroyed or disposed 5 years after it was 
repealed. 8 

Policies  P *If the policy has been repealed, it may be 
destroyed or disposed 5 years after it was 
repealed. 9 

Capital Improvement Projects   
Final Project Documents   P Bid Docs/Results  

Agreements/Contracts  
Design Drawings (Originals)  
Permits  
CEQA  
Surveys10  

Unaccepted 
Bids/Proposals 

3 11 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 6 of 12 

 

Correspondence  
Correspondence  3 Support Letters  

Agency Correspondence12  

Customer Files  
Customer Files  P Incode Files  

Liens and Releases   
Work Orders  
Water/Sewer Hook Up Forms13 

District Documents   
District Documents   P District Formation Documents 

District Reorganization/Changes  
Boundaries  

LAFCO Documents14  

District Insurance   
Claims  3 Damage Claims Against the District  

Policy Documents  10 Property/Liability Insurance  

Reports  10 Accident, Incident Reports15 

District Property – ‘Real Property’  
Agreements  P Agreements, Contracts, Leases16 

Surveys  P District Boundaries   
Property Surveys   
Survey Maps17 

Real Property Interests 
Documentation  

P Annexations  
Detachments  
Grant Deeds  
Easements   
Encroachments18 

Grants  
Unsuccessful Grants  3   

Successful Grants*  P *Refer to funding agreement for required 
documents.   

Legal  
Litigation*  L+2 *Any pending claim or litigation or any 

settlement other than a disposition of 
litigation. 19 

Legal Counsel/Opinion   3 20 

Operating Procedures  
Operating Procedures  L+3 SOP’s, SOG’s 21  

Records Management   
Filing Structure/Inventory L  

Public Records Request  3  22 

Records Destruction  P Destruction approval/inventory form 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 7 of 12 

 

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance   
Vehicle & Equipment 
Maintenance  

L Title / Registration  
Inspection/Maintenance Records23 

 

   

Record  
FINANCE  

Retention 
Period  

Description/Examples  

Accounting Records   
Accounting Records  10 Accounts Payable/ Receivable24 

Annual Financial Reports  
Audit (Working Files) 25 
Billing Reports26 
Bills/Invoices27 
Cash Receipts  
Depreciation Schedule  
Fuel Logs  
Ledgers  
Journals  
Petty Cash  
Purchase Orders  
Sales Tax Report  

Banking   
Banking  10 Deposits28 

Reconciliation29 
Statements (With copies of checks)  
Checks, Stubs30 

Cost of Services/Financing   
Cost of Services/Financing  P Rates and Charges  

Prop 218 Documents  
Taxes/Fees  
Assessments  
Bonds  

Loans31 

Final Audit Report   
Final Audit Report  P   

Final Budget   
Final Budget  P Operating/Capital Improvement Budget  

Salary Schedule32  
Payroll   
Federal/State Reports  10 Annual W-2’s  

W-4’s  
1099’s  
Quarterly & Year End Reports33 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 8 of 12 

 

Reports  10 Direct Deposit  
Workers Comp  
Retirement  
PTO  
Overtime  
401k  
Vacation  
Sick Leave34 

Additional Payroll Documents  10 Deductions35  
Registers36 
Timesheets37  
Garnishments38  

  

  
 

Record  
PERSONNEL  

Retention 
Period  

Description/Examples  

Employee Records  
Resumes/Job 
Applications  

3 Non-successful candidates39 

Employee Training 
Records  

L+3 40 

Personnel Files  L+3 Training  
Certifications  
Evaluations  
Employment Apps, Resumes, Interview 
Docs, Tests, Changes, Terminations, 
Medical Leave, Performance 
Evaluations, DMV Pull Notices/Reports  

Human Resources  
Employee Programs  3 EAP  

Recognition41  

Job Descriptions  L+3 42  
CA & Federal 
Employment Notices  

5   

Insurance  
Employee Benefits  7 Benefit Plans  

Health Insurance Programs  
COBRA43 

Union  
Employee Rights   3 Grievances,   

Sexual harassment Civil rights,  
Disciplinary Actions 44 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 9 of 12 

 

Agreements  P MOU  

Correspondence  3    

Workers Compensation Claims   
Workers Compensation 
Claims  

P 45 

  
  
 

Record  
OPERATIONS   

Retention 
Period  

Description/Examples  

As Built and Facility Drawings   
As Built and Facility 
Drawings  

P   

Operations/Maintenance Records  
Operational  10 SWTP/Well Records  

Lift Station Pumping46 

Maintenance  10 Manhole Inspections  
Sewer Line Cleaning  
Pump Maintenance47 

Regulatory/Compliance 

Permits  P Water Supply Permit  
Permit to Operate  
OSHA  
State Health Permit  
Compressor Permit48 

Water Testing Analysis  P   

Reports – Regulatory 
Inspection  

P Hazardous Waste Inspections  

Reports – Regulatory 
Compliance   

3 Backflow  
SSO’s  
CCR  
Annual Report  

Inspection Reports  10 FERC  
Facility  
DWR/CDPH  
County  
OSHA   

Operation Plans  P ERP  
SSMP  
BSSP  
SWTP/GW  
OP  

  



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 10 of 12 

 

   Record  
FIRE  

Retention 
Period  

Description/Examples  

Emergency Management & Response 
Emergency Planning L+3 Mutual Aid Plans 

Response Plans 
Evacuation Plans 
Business Pre-Plans  

Incidents  3 Mutual Aid Incidents  
Strike Team  
Patient Care Records 
Reports - Dispatch & Incident49 

Fire Safety  
Business Pre Plans  L+3   

Fire Codes & Manuals  L+3 50 

Inspections / Citations L+3 Building, Business, Vacant Lots51 

Investigations  P 
 

Plans  L+3 Fire Alarm, Sprinkler   

ISO Ratings  L+3   

Operations  
Daily Station Logs P Activities, Engine Company  

Inventory & Supplies L 52 

Operational 
Logs/Journals 

3 Pass-down logs 
Training logs53 

Permits L+3 Confined Space 
Other Permits 

Volunteer Programs  
Volunteer Programs  L+3 CERT  

Intern Programs 
Reserve Programs 
Operational Support Unit  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 11 of 12 

 

FOOTNOTES 

 

ADMINISTRATION 
1 CCP 337 
  CCP 337.2 
  CCP 343 
2 GC 34090 
 GC 34090.5  
3 GC 53235.2 
4 GC 81009b, 81009g 
5 GC 81009e 
           GC 81009b 
6 GC 34090 
            29 USC 1113 
7 GC 34090  
           GC 40801 
8 GC 34090d  
        GC 40806  
       GC 40801 
         GC 60201 
9 GC 34090d  
        GC 40806  
       GC 40801 
         GC 60201 
10 GC 34090  
    CCP 337.15 
11 GC 60201(d)(11) 
12 GC 34090d 
13 GC 34090 
14 GC 34090 
15 29 CFR 1904.2 29 CFR 1904.6 
16 CCP 337.15 
17 GC 34090 
18 GC 34090a 
19 GC 34090 
  GC 60201 
20 GC34090 
21 GC 34090 
22 GC 34090 
    GC 60201 
23 VC 9900 et seq. 
 
FINANCE 
24 GC 34090.7 
25 GC 34090  

CCP 337  



THCSD Policy #3100 Records Retention & Destruction 
Page 12 of 12 

 

 

CCP 343 
26 GC 34090 
27 GC 34090 
 
28 GC 34090 
       CCP 337 
29 GC 34090  
       26 CFR 16001-1 
30 GC 34090  
        CCP 337 
31 GC 34090 
32 GC 34090 
33 29 USC 436; 26 CFR 31.6001-4; 
     R & TC 19530; R & TC 19704; 26 USC 6001 
34 GC 60201 
35 GC 34090; CAC 22-1085-2; 29 CFR 516.6c 
36 GC 34090; GC 37207; 29 CFR 516.5a, LC 1174d 
37 GC 34090; 29 CFR 516.2; LC 1174d 
38 CCP 337 
 
PERSONNEL 
39 29 CFR 1627.3 
40 GC 12946 
           GC 34090 
41 GC 34090  
          GC 12946  
42 29 CFR 1627.3 
43 29 USC 1027; 11 CCR 560; 29 CCR 1300.85.1; 29 CFR 1627.3(b)(2) 
44 GC 12946 
45 Insurance- GC 6410; 29 CFR 1910.20 
Claims- CCR 14311; 15400.2, CA Labor Code 110-139.6 
 
OPERATIONS 
46 GC 34090 
47 GC 34090 
47 GC 34090 
 
FIRE 
49 GC 34090; CCP 338 
50 GC 34090 
 CCP 340.5 
51 UFC 103.34 
52 GC 34090 
53 GC 34090 


	Agenda Finance-Policy _ May 5, 2021.pdf (p.1-3)
	01 - 21-22 Budget Draft #1.pdf (p.4-7)
	02 - 5 Year Projections.pdf (p.8-12)
	03 - THCSD 3095 District Facility Keys.pdf (p.13)
	04A - THCSD 3100 Records Retention & Destruction + Appendix A.pdf (p.14-53)
	04B - THCSD 3100 Records Retention_REV 2021-05-12.pdf (p.54-65)


